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Erroneously applying § 924(c)(I)(A)'s 5-year mandatory millimum also

rendered Gould's sentence substantively improper. First, because of its failure to

contemplate the correct Guidelines range, the District Court failed to consider the

extent to which Gould's 197-month sentence deviates from the properly calculated

Guidelines range of 120 to 137 months. See id at 597 (holding that a district court

"must consider the extent of the deviation"). Second, in light of 18 U.S.C.

§ 3553(a)'s factors, the District Court did not have a sufficiently compelling

justification for departing by 60 months from the top of the properly calculated

Guidelines range.

These procedural and substantive improprieties, together or alone, reqUIre

that Gould's sentence be vacated and remanded for further resentencing. But the

Fifth Circuit never addressed them. Instead, the Fifth Circuit avoided them by

relying erroneously on its adoption of the unpublished decisions in Collins to reject

Gould's argument that, because of the "except" clause, the 5-year mandatory

minimum does not apply to Count Three. Pet. App. la-2a.

CONCLUSION

The Court should grant this petition for a writ of certiorari, either separately

or together with any writ of certiorari in Williams, to resolve the circuit split as to

whether a § 924(c)(1)(A) mandatory minimum applies to a count when a greater

mandatory minimum applies to another count. On review, the Court should vacate

Gould's sentence and remand for further resentencing.



October 16, 2009

17

, -.-,y submitted,

''"JIIlI~","", L. HORAN
(Counsel ofRecord)

DAVID J. SCHENCK
PAUL F. THEISS
JONES DAY
2727 N. Harwood Street
Dallas, TX 75201·1515
Telephone: (214) 220-3939
Facsimile: (214) 969·5100

Counsel for Petitioner



la

United States Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit.

Carlos Rashad GOULD, Petitioner

v.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Respondent

No. 08-10857

July 29, 2009

Before DAVIS, GARZA and PRADO, Circuit Judges.

PER CURIAM:-

Carlos Rashad Gould pleaded guilty to conspiracy to possess with intent to

distribute 50 grams or more of cocaine base in violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841, 846

(Count One); and possession of a firearm in furtherance of a drug trafficking crime,

in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 924(c) (Count Three). On resentencing following remand

from this court, the district court sentenced Gould to 137 months in prison on

Count One, within the advisory guidelines range, and to a mandatory consecutive

sentence of five years on Count Three, for a total of 197 months. Gould now

challenges that sentence. For the following reasons, we affirm.

Gould first contends that the district court committed procedural error by

imposing a mandatory consecutive five-year term on the § 924(c) charge. Gould's

contention is based on the so-called "exception" clause of § 924(c). In an

unpublished opinion in 2006, we joined three other circuits to reject this same

argument. See United States v. Collins, 205 F. App'x 196, 197-98 (5th Cir. 2006).

While this appeal was pending, we adopted the reasoning and holding of Collins in

- Pursuant to 5th Cir. R. 47.5, the court has determined that this opinion should not be published
and is not precedent except under the limited circumstances set forth in 5th Cir. R. 47.5.4.
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a published decision. United States v. London, _ F.3d _, No. 07-31092, 2009 WL

1362593, at *8 (5th Cir. May 18, 2009). Accordingly, we reject Gould's argument.

Gould next contends that this sentence was substantively unreasonable on

several grounds. He first argues that the misapplication of the five-year minimum,

which resulted in a total of 197 years, rendered his sentence substantively

unreasonable. Given our disposition of his challenge to the five-year mandatory

minimum, this argument necessarily fails.

Gould also challenges the substantive reasonableness of the sentence in light

of his efforts while incarcerated to improve his education, the assistance he

provided the Government in prosecuting others, and the disparity under the

Sentencing Guidelines between sentences for crack cocaine offenses and powder

cocaine offense. In light of the district court's careful consideration of the 18 U.S.C.

§ 3553(a) factors, the evidence regarding the facts of this case, and the deferential

standard of review, we discern no abuse of discretion in the district court's choice of

a within-guidelines sentence. See Gall v. United States, 128 S. Ct. 586, 597 (2007);

United States v. Mondragon-Santiago, 564 F.3d 357,360 (5th Cir. 2009).

AFFIRMED.
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United States Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit.

Carlos Rashad GOULD, Petitioner

v.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Respondent

No. 08-10857

August 28, 2009

ON PETITION FOR REHEARING ENBANG

Before DAVIS, GARZA, and PRADO, Circuit Judges.

PER CURIAM:

( ) Treating the Petition for Rehearing En Banc as a Petition for Panel Rehearing,

the Petition for Panel Rehearing is DENIED. No member of the panel nor judge in

regular active service of the court having requested that the court be polled on

Rehearing En Banc (FED. R. APP. P. and 5th Cir. R. 35), the Petition for Rehearing

En Banc is DENIED.

(X) Treating the Petition for Rehearing En Banc as a Petition for Panel Rehearing,

the Petition for Panel Rehearing is DENIED. The court having been polled at the

request of one of the members of the court and a majority of the judges who are in

regular active service and not disqualified not having voted in favor (FED. R. APP. P.

and 5th Cir. R. 35), the Petition for Rehearing En Banc is DENIED.
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